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RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE AN
EXISTING SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE TO BE UTILIZED AS A SHORT-TERM
RENTAL UPON PROPERTY SITUATED IN A RM-20 MEDIUM-DENSITY MULTI-
FAMILY ZONE AND IDENTIFIED AS 120 KELLER AVENUE

WHEREAS, on Thursday, May 21, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-029-PC, Alvin & Ronald
Baker (owners) and Jeri Catus (applicant), a request for Conditional Use approval for the property
identified as 120 Keller Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that the owner/applicant had submitted a request for
Conditional Use approval to authorize an existing single-family residence, situated on a parcel
of land measuring approximately 72’ x 270’, to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental. The property
is located within an RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family Residential zoning district and is
identified by the municipal address 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel No. 1410J-04-020.000); and

WHEREAS, it was determined that this Conditional Use request meets all of the
standards, as follows:

a. The Conditional Use complies with all applicable zoning district
standards;

b. The Conditional Use complies with all Use-Specific Standards;

¢. The Conditional Use is compatible with the character of the
surrounding lands and the uses permitted in the zoning district(s) of
surrounding lands;

d. The Conditional Use avoids significant adverse odor, noise, glare, and
vibration impacts on surrounding lands regarding refuse collection,
service delivery, parking and loading, signs, lighting, and other site
elements; -



e. The Conditional Use is configured and designed to screen, buffer, or
otherwise minimize adverse visual impacts on adjacent lands;

f. The Conditional Use avoids significant deterioration of water and air
resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural
resources;

g. The Conditional Use maintains safe and convenient ingress and egress
and traffic flow onto and through the site by vehicles and pedestrians,
and safe road conditions around the site;

h. The Conditional Use allows for the protection of property values and
the ability of neighboring lands to develop uses permitted in the
zoning district; and

i, The Conditional Use complies with all other relevant city, state, and
federal laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, upon reflection of the
information related by the applicant at the public hearing, voted (11-0-0) to recommend approval of
the requested Conditional Use approval to authorize an existing single-family residence, situated
on a parcel of land measuring approximately 72’ x 270°, to be utilized as a Short-Tenn Rental.
The property is located within an RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family Residential zoning
district and is identified by the municipal address 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel No. 1410J-04-
020.000), having determined that the proposed Conditional Use had been found to be in
compliance with the Land Development Ordinance, and finding also that the use promotes the
public interest at this location; that the use has been designed, located and proposed to be
operated so that the public health, safety and welfare will be protected; that said use will not
cause substantial injury to other properties in the neighborhood in which located; and that the use
proposed conforms to all zoning district regulations of the RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-
Family Residential zoning district; and

WHEREAS, the Biloxi City Council, after consideration of all facts presented, hereby
adopts the report and findings of the Biloxi Planning Commission, and in so doing, determines that

approval of the requested Conditional Use is appropriate for the property identified as 120 Keller



Avenue,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, THAT this requested Conditional Use approval to
authorize an existing single-family residence, situated on a parcel of land measuring
approximately 72’ x 270, to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental. The property is located within
an RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family Residential zoning district and is identified by the
municipal address 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel No, 1410J-04-020.000), as addressed within
Case No. 26-029-PC, Alvin & Ronald Baker {owners) and Jeri Catus (applicant), is appropriate,
having determined that the proposed use has been found to be in compliance with the Land
Development Ordinance, and finding also that the Short-Term Rental, as presented, promotes
the public interest at this location; that the use has been designed, located and proposed to be
operated so that the public health, safety and welfare will be protected; that said use will not
cause substantial injury to other properties in the neighborhood in which located; and that this
Conditional Use conforms to all zoning regulations, as required to proceed with the establishment

of this use at these locations.

...............................................................................................................................................................



RESOLUTION NO.
RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO A REQUEST
FOR A CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE AN EXISTING SINGLE-
FAMILY RESIDENCE TO BE UTILIZED AS A SHORT-TERM RENTAL UPON

PROPERTY SITUATED IN A RM-20 MEDIUM-DENSITY MULTI-FAMILY ZONE AND
IDENTIFIED AS 120 KELLER AVENUE

WHEREAS, on Thursday, May 21, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr, Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-029-PC, Alvin & Ronald
Baker (owners) and Jeri Catus (applicant), a request for Conditional Use approval for the property
identified as 120 Keller Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that the ownet/applicant had submitted a request for
Conditional Use approval to authorize an existing single-family residence, situated on a parcel
of land measuring approximately 72° x 270’, to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental. The property
is located within an RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family Residential zoning district and is
identified by the municipal address 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel No. 1410J-04-020.000); and

WHEREAS, it was determined that this Conditional Use request meets all of the
standards, as follows:

a. The Conditional Use complies with all applicable zoning district
standards;

b. The Conditional Use complies with all Use-Specific Standards;

¢. The Conditional Use is compatible with the character of the
surrounding lands and the uses permitted in the zoning district(s) of
surrounding lands;

d. The Conditional Use avoids significant adverse odor, noise, glare, and
vibration impacts on surrounding lands regarding refuse collection,
service delivery, parking and loading, signs, lighting, and other site
elements;



¢. The Conditional Use is configured and designed to screen, buffer, or
otherwise minimize adverse visual impacts on adjacent lands;

f. The Conditional Use avoids significant deterioration of water and air
resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural
resources;

g. The Conditional Use maintains safe and convenient ingress and egress
and traffic flow onto and through the site by vehicles and pedestrians,
and safe road conditions around the site;

h. The Conditional Use allows for the protection of property values and
the ability of neighboring lands to develop uses permitted in the
zoning district; and

i. The Conditional Use complies with all other relevant city, state, and
federal laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, upon reflection of the
information related by the applicant at the public hearing, voted (11-0-0) to recommend approval of
the requested Conditional Use approval to authorize an existing single-family residence, situated
on a parcel of land measuring approximately 72* x 2707, to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental.
The property is located within an RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family Residential zoning
district and is identified by the municipal address 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel No. 14101-04-
020.000), having determined that the proposed Conditional Use had been found to be in
compliance with the Land Development Ordinance, and finding also that the use promotes the
public interest at this location; that the use has been designed, located and proposed to be
operated so that the public health, safety and welfare will be protected; that said use will not
cause substantial injury to other properties in the neighborhood in which located; and that the use
proposed conforms to all zoning district regulations of the RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-
Family Residential zoning district; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, having given the Planning
Commission's recommendation full consideration, has determined that this is a matter of general

public concern, and being so, it is in the best interest of the community that a second public hearing



be conducted on this matter before the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, THAT an additional public hearing will be conducted by
the City Council in reference to Case No. 26-029-PC, Alvin & Ronald Baker (owners) and Jeri
Catus (applicant), on a date to be set and in accordance with all requirements of Section 23-2-3 (F)

of the City of Biloxi Land Development Ordinance governing the conduct of public hearings.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION TO DENY CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE AN
EXISTING SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE TO BE UTILIZED AS A SHORT-TERM
RENTAL UPON PROPERTY SITUATED IN A RM-20 MEDIUM-DENSITY MULTI-
FAMILY ZONE AND IDENTIFIED AS 120 KELLER AVENUE

WHEREAS, on Thursday, May 21, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-029-PC, Alvin & Ronald
Baker (owners) and Jeri Catus (applicant), a request for Conditional Use approval for the property
identified as 120 Keller Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that the owner/applicant had submitted a request foxl'
Conditional Use approval to authorize an existing single-family residence, situated on a parcel
of land measuring approximately 72’ x 270°, to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental. The property
is located within an RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family Residential zoning district and is
identified by the municipal address 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel No. 1410J-04-020.000); and

WHEREAS, it was determined that this Conditional Use request meets all of the
standards, as follows:

a. The Conditional Use complies with all applicable zoning district
standards;

b. The Conditional Use complies with all Use-Specific Standards;

¢. The Conditional Use is compatible with the character of the
surrounding lands and the uses permitted in the zoning district(s) of
surrounding lands;

d. The Conditional Use avoids significant adverse odor, noise, glare, and
vibration impacts on surrounding lands regarding refuse collection,
service delivery, parking and loading, signs, lighting, and other site
elements;



e. The Conditional Use is configured and designed to screen, buffer, or
otherwise minimize adverse visual impacts on adjacent lands;

f. The Conditional Use avoids significant deterioration of water and air
resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural
resources;

g. The Conditional Use maintains safe and convenient ingress and egress
and traffic flow onto and through the site by vehicles and pedestrians,
and safe road conditions around the site;

h. The Conditional Use allows for the protection of property values and
the ability of neighboring lands to develop uses permitted in the
zoning district; and

i. The Conditional Use complies with all other relevant city, state, and
federal laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, upon reflection of the
information related by the applicant at the public hearing, voted (11-0-0) to recommend approval of
the requested Conditional Use approval to authorize an existing single-family residence, situated
on a parcel of land measuring approximately 72’ x 270’, to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental.
The property is located within an RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family Residential zoning
district and is identified by the municipal address 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel No. 1410J-04-
020.000), having determined that the proposed Conditional Use had been found to be in
compliance with the Land Development Ordinance, and finding also that the use promotes the
public interest at this location; that the use has been designed, located and proposed to be
operated so that the public health, safety and welfare will be protected; that said use will not
cause substantial injury to other properties in the neighborhood in which located; and that the use
proposed conforms to all zoning district regulations of the RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-
Family Residential zoning district; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, having given the Biloxi Planning Commission’s
recommendation serious thought, has determined that this Conditional Use, as presented, is not

appropriate as submitted for the property suggested.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, THAT having given the Planning Commission's
recommendation full consideration, hereby rejects said recommendation and hereby denies the
requested Conditional Use for the property identified as 120 Keller Avenue, Case No. 26-029-
PC, Alvin & Ronald Baker (owners) and Jeri Catus (applicant), based upon a determination

that

...............................................................................................................................................................
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Scheduled for Alvin & Ronald Baker (owners) Jeri Catus (applicant)
May 21, 2026 Case No. 26-029-PC
PC Meeting Conditional Use
Short-Term Rental
Biloxi
establizhed 1699
Planning Commission
Case Fact Sheet
Case No.: 26-029-PC

Name of Owners:
Name of Applicant:

Alvin & Ronald Baker (owners)
Jeri Catus (applicant)

Address of Property: 120 Keller Avenue
Tax Parcel/Ward: 1410J-04-020.000/Ward 1
Request: Conditional Use

Purpose of Request:

Size of Properties:
Present Zoning:
Flood Zone:
Présent Use:

Most Nearly

Bounded By {streets):

Adverse Influsnces:

Positive Influences:

To consider an application reguesting Conditional Use
approval to authorize an existing single-family residence to
be used as a Short—-Term Rental, for property identified by
municipal addresses 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel
No.1410J-04-020.000).

72" X 270" (more or less)

RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family

AE-18/CAZ

Single-Family Residence

Situated to the North of Beach Boulevard: to the South of

Howard Avenue; to the West of Holley Street; and to the East
of and fronting Keller Avenue,

Care must be exercised before granting Conditional Use
approval to ensure that the objectives of the City regulations
are fully followed and that adjoining residential properties are
protected.

The requested Conditional Use would allow the applicants to
offer a Single-Family Residence for rental periods of less than
30 days.



Letters or
Concerns stated:

Comments/
Recommendations:

Alvin & Ronald Baker (owners) Jeri Catus (applicant)
Case No. 26-029-PC

Conditional Use

Short-Term Rental

Page 2

The Planning Division Office has not received any letters or
other written communications relative to this case, as of May
14, 2026,

Alvin & Ronald Baker (owners) and Jeri Catus (applicant)
have submitted an application requesting Conditional Use
approval to authorize an existing single-family residence,
situated on a parcel of land measuring approximately 72" x
270', to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental. The property is
located within an RM-20 Medium-Density Multi-Family
Residential zoning district and is identified by the municipal
address 120 Keller Avenue (Tax Parcel No. 1410J-04-
020.000).

It should be noted that all Short-Term Rentals in the City of
Biloxi are subject to specific regulations, as provided by City
Ordinance. Should this Single-Family Residence be
recommended for approval as a Short-Term Rental, all city
regulations involved must be fully addressed.

It should be further noted that a Conditional Use can only
be approved upon finding that all of the following standards
are met:

a. The Conditional Use complies with all
applicable zoning district standards:

b. The Conditional Use complies with all Use-
Specific Standards;

¢. The Conditional Use is compatible with the
character of surrounding lands and the
uses permitted in the zoning district(s) of
surrounding lands;

d. The Conditional Use avoids significant
adverse odor, noise, glare, and vibration
impacts on surrounding lands regarding
refuse collection, service delivery, parking
and loading, signs, lighting, and other site
elements:; : '



Alvin & Ronald Baker (owners) Jeri Catus (applicant)

' Case No. 26-028-PC

Conditional Use

Short-Term Rental

' Page 3

e. The Conditional Use is configured and

designed to screen, buffer, or otherwise

minimize adverse visual impacts on
adjacent lands;

f. The Conditional Use avoids significant
deterioration of water and air resources,
wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other
natural resources;

d. The Conditional Use maintains safe and
convenient ingress and egress and traffic
flow onto and through the site by vehicles
and pedestrians, and safe road conditions
around the site;

h. The Conditional Use allows for the
protection of property values and the ability
of neighboring lands to develop uses
permitted in the zoning district; and

I. The Conditional Use complies with all other
relevant city, state and federal laws and
regulations.

Options:

1.

Recommend approval of this request for Conditional Use, finding that the
proposed use serves the public interest at this location; that it has been designed,
located, and is proposed to be operated in a manner that protects the public
health, safety, and welfare; and that it should not cause substantial injury to other
properties within the surrounding neighborhood.

. Recommend denial of this request for Conditional Use, as presented, having

determined that the proposed use does not promote the public interest at this
location and has not been found to meet all applicable Zoning District Regulations,
as outlined in the Land Development Ordinance.



To Be Completed by Owner/Applicant [ Date: ©2[03[z02(.

Name of Rightful Owner(s):
Alvin Bakee A’om&[ﬁ( &1&(‘

I\ﬁme of Applicant: (if different than Owner)
: : Codus g 13- 749- 44713

Property Address

Ward Number I

170 Ke [/@/‘ AUC B lex‘: M& 25530

Tax Parcel Identification Number(s);

[ULAU TTollo-ls lul-[ol 2]lo]lolo )b |
ERERN AR RN REN |
EEREN AN ERRIEEN .
Mailing Address of Property Owner: of Appli icant (if different than
I T Lontoct= Plrze 0/ NN

City: [ ID’:-J
State: M5 .

| Zip: 39330
County Hacriios

TS

. -_‘Te!e

’heng (

)

d. or.eac );

o reqwre

1 Text Amendment

*" | Zoning Map Amendment — mus

Planned Development

" Master Plan/Update

Preliminary Subdivision Review

Conditional Use

Public ROW Vacation

Street Name Change

Variance

Appeal

Tree Removal

Revised March 2025



GENERAL INFORMATIO' READ BEFORE EXECUTING. At lance by the applicant(s) at
the public hearing is mandatory; however, the applicant may designate a representative to
attend the public hearing on his/her behalf, provided said representative has been properly
designated to speak on the applicant's behalf either by written permission or oral
designation by the applicant at the Public Hearing. If a continuance is to be granted, the
applicant must request same in writing a minimum of seven (7) days in advance of the
scheduled public hearing. The applicant acknowledges that, in signing this application, all
conditions and requirements inherent in the application process have been fully explained
and understood, including the timetable for processing of the application; the applicant has
further received the following appropriate handouts: Application Processing Timetable;
Instructions for Application Completion, Procedures for a Conditional Use or Community
Unit Plan; and Varlance Procedures. The completed application must be returned to the
Planning Office not later than the first or third Thursday of any month in order that a public
hearing may be held on the first or third Thursday of the following month. Receipt of fee(s)

Biloxi City-CGouncil, you will have: teﬁf( 1 0) d’wzg fo mg.neal their decision.

/Cdé s [Tk ol

AHUTe 0 Rightful Own@xmmmm,
1 , nUO l//’/

AT
ote gg\ Ag SqUFFIE

omm:ss:on Expn'e i
Ma'j' 25, 2025 —-‘L .

If someone other than the app s 1
and address{es) below: Pl

TTIT

NOTE: Please see attached instructions for details on documents required for
a complete application.

Revised March 2025



" established 1699

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT ] DATE 1-/ 2 20'2 (e
Conditional Use — The purpose of the Conditional Use is to provide for certain uses that, because of
their unique characteristics, can be allowed with special consideration in each case of the impact of
those uses upon neighboring land and of the public need for the particular use at the particular
location. Because of their unique characteristics, however, each of these requires the exercise of
planning judgment on a case-by-case basis.
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF SUPPORT MUST BE ATTACHED - The parrative must set
forth proposed use and just justification on for the change, utihzsng criteria set forth in Sect;on 23-6-1(e) of the
Biloxi Code of Ordinances and including all proposed:and existing structures as well as the uses
planned for the site in question. Be specific as to d opment proposals, sale of property, or other
transactions/plans proposed or scheduled for preparatzon subject to this rezoning request being granted

approval. IR
Detailed Site Plan Attached (If no site plan is aﬁached this appllcatlon is considered

incomplets and will not be accepted.)

Criteria: Please respond to all yes answers. . e
1. s the use necessary to promote the public interest at that Iocat:on’? Yes[ | { No[Ll—

Please explain: N

J
Nelghborhood in whichiitislocated? =
Please explain:

4. Does the use conform to all district regulations of the applicable zoning |
district in which it is to be located, unless other provisions are specifically set Yes [ J-Mo[]

forth in the requirements governing specific Conditional Uses?
Please explain;

Revised July 29, 2024



5. Have satisfactory provisions and arrangements been made concerning the following, where

applicable:
Please explain

Conditional Use Supplement

N/A  |[Yes| No

1. Ingress and egress?

2. Off-street parking and loading areas, where required, with particular
attention to the economic, noise, glare or odor effects of the Conditional

Use on adjoining properties and properties generally in the
zoning district? Have owin Dok &

3. Refuse and service areas?

4. Utilities, with reference to location, availability, and L
5. Screening and buffering, with reference to type dlmensaons 5
and character? A "
6. Signs, if any, and proposed exterior lighting, with reference to giare
traffic safety, economic effect and compatibility and harmony ws’ch
properties in the zoning district? hoy b ]
‘l/.

Comments:

Note: If approved by City Council, a Condmona! Use Permlt wn!l be |ssued lf no actcon is taken within

one year the Condlt;onai Use Permlt wslf explre

Page 2

Revised July 29, 2024
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BILOXI PIANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MAY 21, 2026
COMMUNTTY DEVELOFMENT,

DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. MUNICIPAL BUILDING,

676 DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. EQULEVARD,

BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI,
BEGIIMNING AT 2:00 P.M.

PLANNING COISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:

Ronnie Bogard
Kyle Carron
Steve Delahousey
Joe King

Gary Lechner
Debora Magee
August Parker
Shante' Shaw
John Snow
David Stanovich
Michael Todaro

ALSO PRESENT:

Jerry Creel, Director of Community Developrment

Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner
Caryle Lena, Planner I
Dr. Paul Tisdale, Councilman Ward 5

REPORTED BY

Melissa Burdine-Rodolfich
Simpson Burdine & Migues

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

C-0-N-T-E-N-T-8
CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING(S) :
(Nene)

NEW PUBLIC HEARING(S) :

26-30-FC

TREE HEARINGS:

(None)

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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MR. DELAHOUSEY:

I'd like to call the meeting to order.
This is the 2:00 p.m. meeting of the Biloxi
Planning Commission.

I am substituting for the chair and vice
chair today. My name is Steve Delahousey. And as
we have done in the past —— I don't know that it's
really necessary, but just to be sure that we
would sustain any scrutiny, I would like to
entertain a motion to have me fill in as chair.
MR. PARKER:

So moved.

MR. KING:

Second.

MR, CELAHCUSEY:

Motion made and a second. A1l in favor,
aye.

(Unanimous vote.)
MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Cpposed?

(None opposed.)
MR, DELAHOUSEY:

Motion carries. Thank you.

Okay. The Chair is going to recognize

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388 3130

the merbers present. We have Mr. Lechner,

Mr. Parker, Mr., Todaro, Ms. Magee, Ms. Shaw,
Mr. Stanovich, Mr. Bogard, Mr. Carron, Mr. King,
Mr. Snow; myself, Steve Delahousey.

The other members -- people that are
present today, we have Mr. Jerry Creel, who is the
Director of Community Development; Caryle Lena,
who is a planner for the City.

And at the table in the audience, we
have Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner for the City;
and our court reporter is Melissa
Burdine-Rodolfich.

Mr. Todaro, would you please cpen the
meeting with a moment of prayer?

{Mcment of prayer.)

MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Mr. Snow, would you lead us in the
Pledge?

(Pledge of Allegiance.)

MR. DELAHCUSEY:

We would also like to recognize Dr. Paul
Tisdale, our City Councilman froem Ward 5.

Have all members of the Commission had
an opportunity to receive the minutes of cur last

meeting? If so, the Chair will entertain a
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eotion.
MR. CARROM:
So moved.
FR. SKCW:
(Indicating second.)
MR. EELRHCUSEY:
We have a motion to approve by
Mr. Carron; second by Mr. Snow.
Any discussion?
{(No response.)
MR. DRLAHCUSEY:
A1l in favor, aye.
{Unanirous vote,)
MR. DELAHOUSEY:
All cpposed?
(None opposed.)
MR. DELAHOUSEY:
Motion carries.
Mr. Creel, do wg have any staff or
comnittee reports?
VR. CREEL:
Yes, sir. Mr. Chairman and members of
the Commlssion, over the past two weeks, the
departrent has issved 134 building permits, with a

construction valuation of right at $2.7 millien.

Simpson Burdice & Migues 228.388.3130
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We have collected $18,000 in permit fees, issued
licenses for 18 new businesses. One of those were
for a peddler, and we also had two renewals.
We've also issued 15 certificates of occoupancy.

Of the permits issued, one was for a
remedeling job at -- for the Walmart at C.7T.
Switzer. Also, we issued the plurbing permit for
the new Chick-fil-A and seven new single-family
houses.

HR. DELAHOUSEY:

Thank you.

For those of you who have not
participated in these meetings before, we have --
we'll first have the Planning Commission meeting.
We have two cases before us today, and we will
hear thosse cases and we will vote on those cases
separately.

Imrediately following the Planning
Commission, w2 will adjourn and we will convene
the Beard of Zoning Adjustments. We have one case
today.

For those of you who are just here for
Planning Commission, you're welcome to stay for
the entire meeting or you can leave after your

case is heard. We Just ask that you please be
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L ok W R

w0~

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

~a
[}

ety R

o tn

10
iat
iz
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

23
24
25

quiet when you exit because we have our court
reporter, And unlike other meetings whers they
just have the minutes, she actuvally is a
stenographer and docutents every word. And so she
has the ultimate authority to make us be guiet,
all of us, If she can't hear what's being said,
she can't docuzent it and so please be mindful of
that.

When your case is called, we will ask
you to come up and pressnt your case. If you need
te sign in, there is a pad on the podium. You'll
need to sign in. If you want to sign in ahead of
time before your case, that's fine.

And when you sign in, you begin your
narrative by giving us your name and address and
then just give us a brief explanation in your cwn
words of what your case is before us. We have a
copy of it, but we'd like te hear it in your cwm
words., And then the Planning Commissicn menbers
may ask you some questions after that.

After that, we will ask if there is
anyons in the audience to speak in favor of the
application, and then we will ask if there is
anyone to speak in cppositicn. After that, we

«ill have the presenter corme up for any rebuttal

Simpson Birdine & Migues 228 3883130
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cenments that he will have to make —— he or she
wishaes to make. We'll close the hearing and we'll
take a vote, And so that's kind of how the
process works.

We ask that thers be no discussion
during the meetings -- during the hearings, If
you have a question, it is inappropriate for you
to direct your question to the presenter. Please
direct your question to the Planning Ccmmission,
and if we can't answer it, we may ask the question
of the presentar, but please -- we don't want to
have a back and forth, ARgain, it causes confusion
for the court reporter. So I would ask you to
please abide by those rules.

Of course, no applause or any outbursts,
I don't think we have any really controversial
cases today.

Ckay. That's it.

AVl right. OCor first case we have today
is Case Murker 26-29-PC, Alvin and Reonald Bakar,
owners, and Jeri Catus -- am I pronouncing that
right?

WMIIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

Yes, sir,

MR, DELRHOUSEY:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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-~ is the applicant requesting
conditional use approval to authorize an existing
single-family residence situated upon a parcel of
land measuring approximately 72 feet by Z70 feet
to be utilized as a short-term rental, The
property is located in an RM-20, medium-density
rulti-family residential zeoning district and is
identified as municipal address of 120 Keller
Avenue, Tax Parcel Number 14103-04-020.000. This
case advertised on May 8th, May 15th.

¥ho is here to represent? Come on up.
MS. LEHA:

Yideo.

MR. DELAHOUSEY:

And I wrote it down, video, and I still
forgot, You can stay there, if you want. She's
just trying to show the video.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:
Okay.
M3. SERPAS:
(Video played.)
XAy .
MR. CELAHQOUSEY:
Qkay, After you've signed in, please

give us your name, address, and tell us a little

Simpson Burding & Migues 228 388 3130
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bit about what you're here for today.
5. CATUS:

Sure, Good afterncen. I'm Jeri Catus.

I apologize if you can't hear me from
the mask. I will try to enunciate,

MR. DELAHCUSEY:

Pull the mic a little closer, if you

would,
MS. CATUS:

Is that better?
MR, DELAHOUSEY:

Yep, that's good.
M5. CATUS:

I don't want to give germs or receive
germs,

In support of 120 Keller Avenue, the
attenpt is to show off the beautiful Biloxi bezach
area, to alsc attract a diverse group of tourism,

Additionally, there is a -~ Felican Cove
condominium that sits right next to the property
that also serves as a great selling point for not
just Cruisin' the Coast but for other major events
that Biloxl has to offer and Gulfport has to
offer.

The other biggest takeaway is there is a

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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big lot in the back of the property that could be
utilized for mwany various things. And so we're
just hoping to get the approval from the
Cemmission today.
MR. EELAHOUSEY:

Okay. Is that it?
S, CATUS:

Yas,
MR. DELBHOUSEY:

All right. Questions from the memhers
of the Commnission?
MR. CRARROH:

Just looking at your diagram there, I'm
kind of confused. Is it two bedrooms?
M§. CATUS:

fes.

MR. CARRON:

But it shows a carport on that cone
bedroom.
M5, CATUS:

S¢ it's a two-bedroom, two-kathroom and
then there is a shed in the back, The driveway is
pretty big. It's spans the width of property.
MR. CARROM:

I don't know if y'all can see what I'm

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130
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talking about on the drawing there. It says
bedrocm, but underneath it's got "carport™ on
there. TIs there a carport in front of that?
M5, CATUS:

Mo, It's not in front like that -- that
wording looks like a pen ink mark. The driveway
is in the front. The carport -- this portion is
in the front of the heome, but directly adiacent to
that front btedroom where you see those two windows

in the wery front, there is like a deck right

there.
MR, CABRGCH:
So that's just a driveway basically?
MS. CATUS:
Yes, sir.
MR. CARRCH:
Ckay. Thank you.
MS. CATUS:
Thank you,
M3. SHAW:
Mr. Carron, this says "carpet.” It

means carget in the bedroom. C-a-r-p-e-t, carpet.
MR. CRRRON:

Okay.
MS. MAGEE:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130
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Ha thought it saild carport.
MS. CATUS:

That's okay. Carpet, carport, That's
okay.

Thank you.

MR, CELAHOUSEY:

Cther. BAny other questions from any
ramkers of the Commission? 7

{{o response.)

MR. DELAHCUSEY:

Anycne in the audience wish to spgak in
favor of the acplicant's request? Anyone to speak
in favor? hAnyons to speak -- yes, sir. Please
ceme forward and give us your nase and sign in,
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

I didn't see a sign-in.

MR. DELAHCUSEY:

It's up here.
HR. EOLELIDAY:

First, my name is John Holliday. I'm in
real estate developrent, appraisal and general
real estate for 50 years.

I'm here to speak on not only the behalf
of that, I represented Mr. and Ms. —— Mr. Baker,

Blvin Baker and his brother on this kouse, They

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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inherited it, It's basically within -- you can
throw a stone and hit the waterfront.

And, anyway, I think ene of highest and
pest uses of it is for this. To restrict that use
away frem this property would devalue that
property as it would any other property at or near
the besch, and I have primary examples of that.

Wnen Cruisin' the Coast comes here, they
don't want their cars in a parking lot at a
casino. They don't wank their cars in a parking
lot at a hotel. They want thelr cars in a parking
lot of a preoperty, and they want that property to
be at or right near the beach, which this is cne
lot cff the beach.

I just rhink it's the highest and best
use -~ one of the highest and best uses of the
property and to restrict it would set a precedent
for restricting other properties in similar
locations and on the beach. Tt would curtail
their land values. It would curtail basically
their private property rights.

Anytime you curtail what people can
do -- I sold a building in D'Iberville once next
to where Kmart used te be. And in Emart's deed

they had, if I rementer right, there shall never
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ke anything adjoining our property that sells
alcoholic beverages. Well, the largest —— one of
the largest night clubs in the south wanted to buy
where Winn Dixie was, but they couldn’t buy it, so
they went and spent 510 million somewhere else.
But it restricted -- it hurt the property value a
lot.,

That's all. I'm here for speaking on
the rights to property values,
MR, DELAHCUSEY:

Sir, did you have -~ did you want to
speak?

Bnyone else to speak in favor of the
applicant's request?

(Mo response.)
MR. EELAHOUSEY:

Anyone in opposition? Anyone to speak
in opposition?

(Mo responsa.}
MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Any questions for the applicant?
MR, STANOVICH:

Could she core back up?
MR, CELRHCUSEY:

Did you have any other comrents?

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3120
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Ma'lam, could you come forwsrd, please,
MR, STANOVICH:

Just one quick question. Are you going
to self-manage it?

M3, CATUS:

Pardon?
MR, STRIOVICH:

Are you wanaging the short-term rental?
M5, CATUS:

Would I manage it, yes. I mean, yes.
MR. STANOVICH:

And how far do you live from there?

M3, CATUS:

Ve would ke living in the property as
well., Sc this is our hore,
MR, DELAHQUSEY:

So you're going to ke residing at this
residence?
M3. CATUS:

Yes, This is just for future, for cur
parents, for our children and forward thinking for
what other options there are for the house, but
this is our hcme,

MR. STANOVICH:

So this is not geing to ke a full-time

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130
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short-term rental?
M5, CATUS:

Ho, sir, it will not.
MS. MAGEE:

So yeu live there now?
MS. CATUS:

We are moving into it, vyes, ma'am.
M. MAGEE:

Okay,

M5, CATUS:

It has to be brought up, updated.
R. CARROM:

When your relatives are staying theve,
hew far away are you going to be from there to --
or are you going to be staying with them?

M5, CATUS:

Mo. 1If our relatives are staying there,
we will be out of the country or a different
location kecause my husband works for the
governrant,
¥R. CARROI:

What we usually like to hear is that if
there is an issue there, scmecre can be there in,
gay, 30 minutes to resclve any issues that might

arise.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228,388 3130
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Mbsolutely. We would have scmsone if we
reed to. If we're not locally nearby in the
actual front home, we will make sure that we have
a manager, absolutely. Yes.

MR, DELBHOUSEY:

Yesh. It is a requirement that if
you're not avallsble that you designate somecne.
MS, CATUS:

Bbsolutely, We will be in accordance to
any guidelines, yes. And this is, again, future
planning,

MR. TELRAHOUSEY:

Any other questions from merbers of the
Commission?

If not, thank you.

M3, CATUS:

You're welcame. Thank you.
MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Mr. Creel.

MR. CREEL:

The property under consideration is
zoned RM~20, which allows short-term as a
conditional use in the RM-20., We believe that the

use is appropriate. If you leok at the zoning

Simpsen Burdine & Miguss 228 388 3130
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map, they're surrounded on the east, south and
west by waterfront property, which is more
extensive and, of course, you've got Pelican Cay
condos right next door, which is high-density
residential.

They have -- they meet the parking
requirements for the two bedrcoms and they have
adequate parking for that. &nd as they've stated,
they'll have someone that will be within
30 minutes of the location.

I would just remind the applicant that
if this is approved, you would need tc go ahead,
get your conditional use permit and you will have
to renew it every year so that you don't lose your
status with it.

So with that understeed, the staff has
no chiection and would reccmend approval.

MR. CARRCH:

Question, Jerry, I believe the City
Council had the first reading on the amendment
changes. Did they vote on those?

MR. CREEL:

The only one that has been approved, I

believe, is the single-family houses in the --

145, SERPAS:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 3883130
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PD.
MR, CREEL:

Right, Okay. I don't believe that they
voked on this one yet, To remove it from RM-Z0
and RM-30, is what you're talking about?

MR, CARRON:

Yes.
MR. CREEL:

No. I don't believe that vote has been
taken yet.

MR, CARRCGH:
All right. Thank you.
MR, CREEEL:

It's tabled subject to call.
MR. DELANOUSEY;

So we have a motion made by Mr. Parker
and a second was Mr. Snow.

All in favor, please raise your hand.

{Unanirous vote.)}

MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Rather than roll call, Melissa, will you
just record that was a unanimous vote in favor?

Any opposed?

{tione cpposed.)

MR. DELAHCUSEY:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388.3130
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Any abstentions?

{(Ho abstentions.)
MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Motion carries.

That hearing is closed.

I would just like to make one comment
that any development towards the east end of
Biloxi, we coanzend you for deing that and
especially for the purposes that you're talking
about and with the -~ in mind, the Cruisin the
Coast aspect and things like that, so you're to ke
commanded for taking this step. Thank you.

M5. CATUS:

Thank you.

MR, DELAHOUSEY:

Okay. OCur next cage”is Case tmker

26-030-FC, Mississippi DewBlepmant, LILC, owner and
Lovepreet Singh, appl#Tant, request for
conditicnal use apProval to authorize construction

of a 4,675-squhre-foot convenience store with gas

hc‘cd Business zone, and identified as
032 Lorraine Road, Tax Parcel tlurker

1107-33.050.000, Video, please.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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M5, SERPAS:

o video on this cne.

MR. DELAHOUSEY:

The ane time I remsuber.
MS5. SERPAS:

It's all woods, so there ¥S nothing to
see, but here's the Google Earth.
MR. CELRHOUSEY:

Can you just pull 3£ up on Geoogle Earth?
M3, SERPAS:

Yes. Here we
MR, DELZHOUSEY:

This case pas advertised on May 8th and
May 15th.
15, [ENA:

That¥s not it.

RIICENTIFIED /SPEAKER:

£'s just north of the intersection of
Lorraine Joad and Woolmarket Road.

HR. g

Woolmarket Road and Lorrains Road

UHIDENTIFIED SPEARER:
North, You've got to go north, Horth,

yeah. Up. There you go. A little bit further.
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BS. SERPAS:

Where are we?

M5, LEMA
Where's the dollar store?
MS. SERPAS:
Right hare.
MR, CREEL:
That's it. It's Woodmarket and
Lorraine.

UNIDRITFIFIED SPERKER:
Yeah. It'y just -- you see the
Dollar -- it's ju east of Dolliar General right
there in the va
MS. LEHA:
e Family Dollar.
MIIDETIBAED SPEAKER:
Yeah., The vacant piecs of progerty to
the ghst of Lorraine Read.
MS./ SERPAS:
Ckay. PBetwsen the pet shep and the
Family Dollar?
MS. LEMNA:
Ho. It's on the other side. You see
the white building right there, Felicia, on the

corner? JIt's the parcel right north of there.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 383 3130
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MR, DELAHOUSEY:
Don't touch the screen.
I3, SERPAS:
Okay. So here was your videyp right

here.

FR. TODARO:
So it's right next to #Zne Dollar

Ganeral?

M5, MAGEE:

MR. TODBRO:
Or Family DSllar.
MS. SERPAS:
Excaelleht, Felicia.
sir. If you'll giwe us your name,
rmake sure youfsign in. Tell us what you're here
for today.
FR. M00DY:
Yeah, Good afterncon. My nare is Nick
Moody. m with MP Design Group, a civil engineer
with tfem, representing M3 Develepment and

Lavepfeet. Singh, which is sitting here, is the

I would 1ike -- like the narrative says,

thhy want to do a -~ roughly a 4,700-square-foot
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